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The area that would become the town of Cokedale began as a tent colony in 1899 to mine what would become the largest producer of metallurgical coal
(coke) in the West. Also in 1899, the Colorado and Wyoming Railway, a subsidiary of the Chicago, Burlington and Quincy Railroad, planned a line to
access the coal fields along the Purgatoire River west of Trinidad, Colorado, including the future Cokedale. The line began at junction with the Pueblo &
Arkansas Valley Railroad (1878), which by 1899 was fully incorporated into the Atchison, Topeka & Santa Fe Railroad, at a location called Jensen. From
Jensen, the line headed west along the Purgatoire River 10 miles to Segundo, where the tracks arrived in 1901 and the C&W built a five-stall roundhouse
and operating headquarters. In 1903, the line was completed west to Stonewall, 26 miles west of the starting point at Jensen.

In 1906, the American Smelting and Refining Company (ASARCO) founded the town of Cokedale and developed the mines, coking ovens (this location),
and other facilities. A spur was constructed, presumably also in 1906, from a connection with the C&W (1903) at a location 4 miles west of Jensen; this
spur extended at least one mile northwestward up Reilly Canyon to the coke ovens (see photo below showing trains at the ovens). A 1951 topo map shows
the spur as an abandoned grade (see below topo map); the symbol for the grade continues northwestward past Cokedale another 7 miles up Reilly
Canyon and onto the adjacent topo map (not shown here) to the ghost town of Boncarbo. Boncarbo was the location of a coal mine established in 1915 by
ASARCO, so it is possible that the grade on the topo map represents an 8 mile spur from the C&W (1903) to Boncarbo. I could find no topo maps for this
area during the time period when the spur would have existed. In any event, after four decades of producing high-grade metallurgical coal, ASARCO
closed the mines in 1947 and by 1951 (date of below topo map) the spur that extended at least to Cokedale and possibly to Boncarbo was gone.

In 1978, the US Army Corps of Engineers dammed the Purgatoire River and the resulting Trinidad Lake inundated part of the C&W (1903) right-of-way.
The inundated part of the of the C&W (1903) included the location of the switch to the spur to Cokedale, which by this time was gone. Due to the building
of the dam, a five mile section of the C&W (1903) was realigned to run south of Trinidad Lake. In 2003, the C&W (1903) was abandoned, but the first 2.3
miles of track was left in place for car storage.

Eastward view of the Cokedale ovens. The Cokedale spur ran through the flat area just beyond the ovens (as shown in below topo map) and a siding ran
between the two rows of ovens (as shown in below photo).
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= current location. The coke ovens are
) = shown just below the red star. Note the
: . : abandoned spur to Cokedale, which
1906 SPUR TOV CéWca 1978 pomts__—_______'i H A connected to the C&W (1903) at a

of dep adure from : Tir A ' ] junction with the part of the C&W (1903)

COKEDALE 1903 alignment : Vs ) DT&FW (1888) « that was realigned pI'iOI' to being
A e MAXWELL inundated by Trinidad Lake ca 1978.
BRANCH

COLORADO & WYOMING
(1903) original alignment

A Denver and Rio Grande Western train is parked on a siding of the Cokedale
spur that ran between the two rows of ovens ca 1930.
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Southward view of the other side of the Cokedale ovens. The 2 bare trees in the center of the photo are growing along the small drainage of Reilly Canyon
and the berm just on the other side of the trees and the stream is the fill grade of the Cokedale spur. The spur may have extended 7 miles to the northwest
(right) up Reilly Canyon to Boncarbo and the connection to the C&W (1903) is one mile to the south (left) down Reilly Canyon to the confluence of this
stream with the Purgatoire River. The ovens were served by one or more sidings off of the main spur.
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Travelers are invited to the Historic Mercantile building conceqny "ﬂl—)n °€ 5{‘%‘(
where they can visit the Cokedale Museum by appointment. B, o,
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Start here for a self-guided walking tour though town. f‘ ! 1.
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